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Project Vision Topco Limited

Strategic Report
The directors present their Strategic Report on the group for the year ended 31 December 2022.
Business review and key performance indicators

For the prior period ending 31 December 2021, which was the first period of account for Project Vision
Topco Limited, the Group prepared its financial statements in accordance with local generally accepted
accounting principles (FRS 102). These financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
the first the Group has prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
Information on how the Group adopted IFRS along with reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of
the transition from FRS 102 to IFRS on the Group’s equity and its net income are given in note 26. The
comparative financial information given below is therefore restated for the impact of the transition to
IFRS.

The group’s turnover for the year was £52,660,165 (14 months to 31 December 2021: £31,467,017).
Loss before tax for the year was £6,984,970 (14 months to 31 December 2021: £2,031,603). The net
assets of the group as at 31 December 2022 were £80,305,576 {2021: £82,182,673). The improved
performance can be attributed to the strength of our underlying market and client relationships as well
as certain investments made, including the acquisition of Strategic North (see below). These
investments have enabled the group to increase income from existing and new clients and improve
margins on projects.

The directors assess performance using a range of financial metrics on a pro-forma basis that are
consistent with the Group's strategy. These metrics are used to evaluate performance and inform
decision making. The directors consider the main financial key performance indicators of the group to
be net revenue arnd gross profit. The group’s statutory net revenue was £52,660,165 (14 months to 31
December 2021 £31,467,017) and gross profit for the year was £47,100,429 (14 months to 31
December 2021: £30,444,757).

The consolidated loss after taxation for the year was £9,284,090 (14 months to 31 December 2021:
£3,602,345).

The results for the period are set out in full in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
on page 12,

Principal activities

The activities of the group of entities headed by Project Vision Topco Limited are as a pharma services
company specialising in product and portfolio strategy and decision support. During the period, the
group operated its business out of its UK, USA, German, Spanish, Indian and Chinese offices. Most of
the group’s clients operate on a Pan-European or global basis, which requires the group to be equally
global. There are currently no expectations that this will change in the foreseeable future.

All operations are continuing in the current period.
Future developments

The pharmaceutical sector market dynamics remain strong, and the group anticipates strong organic
growth over the coming years. We will continue to invest to expand our service offerings to clients and
make key hires to strengthen the group’s capabilities. On 28 February 2022, the group acquired the
entire share capital of Strategic North Limited, a commercialisation and brand strategy business, based
in Manchester. The acquisition and the combined expertise of both firms strengthens the Group's ability
to support our clients through enhanced and complementary service offerings and deep long-standing
customer relationships.



DocuSign Envelope I1D: 5241D97B-F401-43D6-8702-40AB56442F8E

Project Vision Topco Limited

Strategic Report (continued)
Principal risks, financial risks and uncertainties

All businesses are subject to risk and many individual risks are macro-economic or sociat and common
across many businesses. Many risks are to a greater or lesser degree controllable, but some are not
controllable. Through its intemal risk management process, the company and group identiftes business-
specific risks. It classifies the key risks as those which could materially damage the company or group’s
strategy, reputation, business, profitability or assets and these risks are listed below. This list is in no
particular order and is not an exhaustive list of all potential risks. Some risks may be unknown and it
may transpire that others, currently considered immaterial become material.

Operational risk

Operational risk is defined as the risk arising from within the company or group from inadequate or
failed internal processes, inadequately designed or maintained system and inadequate staffing
resources. Operational risk exposures are identified, managed and controlled by the business. Internal
controls include a segregated operations structure and delegation of authority within authorised limits.
This is designed to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

Interest rate risk

The group has interest bearing financial instruments with external third parties. The loans are interest
bearing and have fixed terms of repayment. The Group has entered into an arrangement for an interest
rate cap to minimise the interest rate risk on the bank loans.

Foreign currency risk
The group incurs costs in currencies that differ from its functional currency. These exposures are
monitored and hedged where necessary.

Regulation and compliance
The group has set policies to ensure compliance with General Data Protection Regulation {GDPR) and

other legal and regulatory requirements.

Research and Development

The group continues to develop the InflexionRX online platform which will increase the automation of
projects and enable the group to obtain the benefits of its tech offering. The platform is used by a
number of clients and several new projects have transitioned onto the platform during the financial year.
We continue to invest in the development of further tech enabled service offerings.

Dividend

No dividends have been proposed or paid by the group during the pericd. The group has made no
political contributions during the period.
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Project Vision Topco Limited

Strategic Report (continued)
Companies Act 2006 - Section 172({1) Statement

The directors are required by law to act in a way that promotes the success of the Company for the
benefit of its sharehclders as a whole. While carrying out this duty, the directors must also consider the
wider consequences of their decisions in the long term and how those decisions might affect other
groups of stakeholders, including those listed in section 172(1) of the Companies Act 2006. The
directors of the Company are familiar with their duty under section 172 and believe that they fulfilled
this duty during 2022.

We set out below some selected examples of how the directors have had regard to the matters set out
in section 172(1) (a)-(f) when complying with the section 172 duty and how those factors have influenced
the decisions taken by the Board:

(a) Likely consequences of any decision in the long term: Reports are regularly made to the board
of directors by members of the management board about the strategy, performance and key decisions
taken which provides the board with assurance that proper consideration is given to stakeholder interest
in decision making. The board takes a long-term approach to developing its strategy, which is to grow
and build our pharma services capability and presence in major markets to help clients address their
needs. We aim to achieve this through organic growth and targeting specific acquisitions where
appropriate to broaden our geographic and service offerings.

Ongoing investment in improving the |T infrastructure and testing and upgrading of the Group's cyber
security has improved our business continuity, long-term resilience and protection of data. The board
reviews the relevance of the Group's strategy annually.

(b} Interest of the Group’s employees: Qur people are key to our success. There are many ways we
engage with and listen to our employees including staff surveys, Jocal face-to-face briefings, internal
communities and weekly regional all-staff calls. We know that creating a diverse and inclusive work
environment is essential to being a leading global business and to making Prescient a great place to
build a career. Diversity, equity and inclusion strengthens our environmental, social and governance
performance as well as our ability to recruit and retain great talent, be innovative and build effective
relationships — all of which helps us create better solutions for our clients.

A shadow board is in place which comprises of employees for ali offerings and geographies with
responsibility for representing the interests of staff.

Regular reports about what is important to employees are made to the board ensuring consideration is
given to employee needs and regular discussion of people-related topics occurs at board meetings.
Regular calibration reports are prepared to ensure that we recognise the individual contribution of
employees as part of cur performance linked remuneration strategy.

Qur vision of talent management is to attract, identify, engage and develop, retain and effectively assign
employees to work that interests them. We want our employees to have the opportunity to develop and
fulfit their career aspirations. Our online performance management system makes it easy for all
employees to share their personal development goals and our learming management platform provides
access to a broad range of technical and enabling skills development opportunities.
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Project Vision Topco Limited

Strategic Report (continued)
Companies Act - Section 172(1) Statement (continued)

{c) Need to foster the Group’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others: Our
expansion focuses on building deep and lasting relationships with our clients servicing their needs
across many therapeutic and service areas. We recognise the trust that our clients place in us by
allowing us access to sensitive information and are committed to the highest ethical behaviour and
personal integrity in all our transactions and interactions.

We exercise judgement with respect to the clients and third parties with which we engage and the types
of work we undertake. We will not work with clients or subcontractors who do not share our commitment
to high ethical standards.

(d) Impact of the company’s operations on the community and the environment: An important
element of our strategy is ensuring that we consider our ESG impact during the decision-making
process. During the year we have established an ESG steering commiittee led by board chairman Nick
Edwards and this committee has a clear roadmap set up and this will be reported on to the board
monthly and reviewed regulary throughout the year.

(e} Desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct:
Our written global code of business, conduct and ethics sets clear requirements to ensure that we
conduct business with honesty, integrity and compliance with laws and regulations. We apply or
business conduct and ethics commitments across every office and activity, every day, with the
involvernent and awareness of all our employees.

The board of directors and the management committee are Prescient's most significant governing
bodies. They are responsible for the strategic direction of the business and the effective monitoring of
operations and performance. The board sets a high standard for ethical behaviour and ensures the
Group complies with applicable laws and regulations.

{(f) Need to act fairly between members of the Group: The board recognises the critical importance
of open dialogue and fair consideration of the Group's members. We communicate regularly with
institutional and employee shareholders and are actively updated via regular reports, calls and written
communications.

In the opinion of the Directors, the principal risks and uncertainties facing Project Vision Topco Limited
are effectively considered through the activities of the Board and Senior Leadership Team.

This report was approved by the Board on 2 June 2023 and signed on its behalf.
DocuSigned by:

e P

ZTB2CB4D85E142

Dlrector



DocuSign Envelope 1D 5241D%7B-F401-43D6-8702-40A856442F8E

Project Vision Topco Limited

Directors’ Report

The directors present their annual report and audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Directors and directors’ interests

The directors of the company who were in office during the year and up to the date of signing of the
financial statements were:

D. Talukdar (appointed 22 November 2022)

A. Panayi

A.C.G. McMeeking

N.H. Edwards

J.A. Denison-Pender

R. Verma (resigned 30 June 2022, re-appointed 22 November 2022)
A.D. Payne

S.J. Bonnard {resigned 30 September 2022)

M. Towers {appointed 30 Septernber 2022)

Directors’ indemnity

Qualifying third-party indemnity provisions {as defined by section 234 of the Companies Act 2006) were
in force during the course of the financial year ended 31 December 2022 for the benefit of the then
directors and at the date of approval of the financial statements, are in force for the benefit of the
directors in relation to certain losses and liabilities which they may incur {or have incurred) in connection
with their duties, powers or office. In addition, the Company maintains Directors’ & Officer's Liability
Insurance, which gives appropriate cover for legal action brought against its directors. The insurance
does not provide cover in the event that the director is proved to have acted fraudulently.

Directors’ statement of disclosure of information to the auditors

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, sc far as they are aware,
there is no relevant audit informaticn of which the Company’s auditors are unaware They also confirm
they have taken all necessary steps as directors to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

Matters disclosed in the Strategic Report

The Group has chosen to include certain matters in its Strategic Report that would otherwise be required
to be disclosed in a Directors' Report.

For information reiating to:

Dividends, see page 3

Likely future developments, see page 2

The research and development activities carried out by the company, see page 3
Employee engagement, see page 4

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others with whom we do business, see page 5
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Project Vision Topco Limited

Directors’ Report (continued)
Political donations

The Group did not make any political donations (14 months to 31 December 2021 £nil) or incur any
political expenditure (14 months to 31 December 2021 Enil) during the year.

Employees

The Group sirives to be an equal opportunities employer. It is the Group's policy to give full
consideration to suitable applications for employment of disabled persons and to comply with applicable
equal employment opportunity laws as to race, colour, religious creed, sex, age, national origin, marital
status, ancestry, sexual orientation, veteran status, medical condition or any other largely protected
status.

Where existing employees become disabled, it is Group policy wherever practicable to provide
continuing employment under normal terms and conditions and te provide training and career
development and promoticn to disabled employees wherever appropriate.

Post balance sheet events
No events have occurred since the end of the reporting period which are needed to be disclosed.
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group considers exposure to financial instruments a risk and aims to limit undue exposure and
ensure sufficient working capital exists. The group's financial instruments comprise mainly bank
balances, trade debtors, bank loans and various short-term creditors, which arise directly from its
operations. The cash position of the group remains healthy with a positive cash flow from operating
activities for the year. The group continues to have available a large debtor base well spread over many
accounts, the majority of which relate to well-established blue-chip clients. Tight credit control
procedures are followed, and the directors do not consider risk to be significant.

The group operates on a global basis and in multi-currencies. It is therefore susceptible to fluctuations
on currency exchange between the UK £, the US dollar, Swiss Franc, Indian Rupee and the Euro. The
directors continue to monitor the foreign exchange risk on a regular basis considering whether hedging
would be appropriate.

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting (‘SECR’)

The Group has taken advantage of the exemptions available not to disciose information in relation to
energy use as this is not practical to obtain.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Financial Statements in accordance
with applicable UK law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial staterments for each financial year. Under that
law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK adopted
international accounting standards (IFRSs} and the Company financial statements in accordance with
the United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland”
and applicable law. Under company law, the directors must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company
and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period.
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Project Vision Topco Limited

Directors’ Report (continued)

Statement of director's responsibilities in respect of the financial statements
(continued)

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ state whether UK adopted international accounting standards (IFRSs) has been followed for
the Group financial statements and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS
102 have been followed for the Company financial statements, subject to any material
departures disclosed in and explained in the financial statements;

+« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the group and company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for
taking reascnable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Group and Company’s transactions and disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the
financial position of the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006.

Directors’ confirmations
In the case of each director in office at the date the Directors’ Report is approved:

= so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s
auditors are unaware; and

« they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's
auditors are aware of that information.

Independent auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were appointed as independent auditors during the year and have
indicated their willingness to remain in office. A resolution conceming their re-appointment will be
proposed at the annual general meeting.

Directors’ conflict of interest

Directors have a statutory duty to avoid situations in which they may have interests that conflict with
those of the Company.

The Board has adopted procedures as provided for in the Company’s articles of association for
authorising existing conflicts of interest and for the consideration of and, if appropriate, authorisation
of new situations that may arise.

This report and the financial statements on pages 12 to 56 were approved by the Board of Directors on
2 June 2023 and signed on behalf of the board by:

@(py? '{

2782064D65E142E |
A Panayi
Director
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Project Vision Topco Limited

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Project Vision
Topco Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion:

* Project Vision Topco Limited's group financial statements and company financial statements {(the “financial
statements”) give a frue and fair view of the state of the group's and of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2022
and of the group’s loss and the group’s cash flows for the year then ended;

s the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting
standards as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006;

+ the company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”, and applicable law); and

= the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the “Annual
Report”), which comprise: the Consolidated and Cempany Statements of Financial Position as at 31 December 2022; the
Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Company
Statements of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended; and the notes
to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under ISAs {UK) are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial slatements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and the company’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a petiod of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the group's
and the company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this reporl.
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Project Vision Topco Limited

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinich or, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. 1f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors' Report, we alse considered whether the disclosures required by the
UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain
opinionsg and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors' Report
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors' Report for the year ended 31 December 2022 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal requirements,

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors' Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsibie for such internal control as they determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the company’s ability to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and {0 issue an auditors’ report that includes our gpinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line

with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

10
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Project Vision Topco Limited

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws
and regulations related to UK tax, employment and data protection legislation, and we considered the extent to which
non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations
that have a direct impact on the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006. We evaluated management's
incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of
conhtrols), and determined that the principal risks were related to fraudulent financial reporting, specifically the posting of
inappropriate journal entries to manipulate financial results and potential management bias in accounting estimates. Audit
procedures performed by the engagement team included:

* Discussions with management and those charged with governance, including consideration of any known or
suspected instances of non-compliance with taws and regulations and fraud,

* Addressing the risk of management override of internal controls, including testing of journal entries {in particular,
journal entries posted with an unusual account combinationy);

¢ Challenging assumptions made by management in determining their judgements and accounting estimates; and

* Reviewing financial stalement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
applicable laws and regulations.

Thete are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the
financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opiniens, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpese. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands
it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

* certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

*» the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Gono—

Jonathan Ford {Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

2 June 2023

11
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Project Vision Topco Limited

Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Restated*
Year Ended 14 months ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Note £ £
Revenue 3 52,660,165 31,467,017
Cost of sales (5,559,736) (1,022,260)
Gross Profit 47,100,429 30,444,757
Staff costs 4 (27,929,393) (17,042,429)
Other operating expenses 5 (5,907,103) (4,042,433)
Depreciation on right-of-use assets, fixtures, fittings 8 {1.452,131) (1,039,617)
and computer equipment
Operating profit before amortisation and 11,811,802 8,320,278
impairment of intangible assets
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 11 (1,808,423) (978,094
Operating Profit 5 10,003,379 7,342,184
Financial income 6 7.856 11,526
Financial expenses 6 ~ {16,996,205) ($,385,313)
Loss befare tax {6,984,970) (2,031,603)
Taxation 7 (2,299,120} (1,570,742)
Net Loss {9,284,090) (3,602,345}

*Restated due to transition to IFRS —refer to note 26

All losses arise as a result of continuing operations. The accounting policies together with the notes on

pages 17-56 form part of these financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Restated™
Year Ended 14 months ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£ £

Loss for the financial year (9,284,090) (3,602,345)
Other comprehensive loss
Foreign currency translation 233,527 {113,584)
Other comprehensive loss 233,527 {113,584)
Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of {9.,050,563) (3,715,829

tax

*Restated due to transition to IFRS —refer to note 26

12
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Project Vision Topco Limited

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2022

Restated*
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Note £ £
Non-current assets
Goodwill 11 168,752,621 160,592,125
Property, plant and equipment 8 1,020,145 863,760
Intangible assets 11 15,197,212 4,339,666
Right-of-use assets 9 2,243,262 2,404,295
Total non-current assets 187,213,240 168,199,846
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 14 13,178,521 8,880,897
Cash and cash equivalents 9,661,029 3,940,097
Total current assets 22,839,550 12,820,994
Total assets 210,052,790 181,020,840
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 {17,730,345) (8,035,206}
Lease Liabilities 18 (850,213) (751,108)
Totai current liabilities (18,580,558) (8,786,314)
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 18 {1,567,628) (1,767,004)
Borrowings 16 (106,324,086) (87,162,164)
Deferred tax liabilities 13 {3,154,942) (996,361)
Provisions 19 (120,000) (120,000}
Total non-current liabilities {111,166,656) {90,045,529)
Total liabilities (129,747,214} (98,831,843)
Net assets 80,305,576 82,188,997
Share capital 20 928,387 857,105
Share premium 92,143,681 85,047,821
Accumulated losses (12,766,492) (3,715,929)
Total shareholders' funds 80,305,576 82,188,997

*Restated due to transition to IFRS - refer to note 26

This report and the financial statements on pages 12 to 56 were approved by the Board of Directors on

2 June 2023 and signed on behalf of the beard by:

(80 Pos

27B2C64D65E142E .

A Panayi
Director

Registered No. 12984994
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 5241D097B-F401-43D6-8702-40A856442F8E

Project Vision Topco Limited

Statement of Financial Position — Company
As at 31 December 2022

Note Restated*
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£ £
Non-current assets
Investments 10 85,622,207 85,622,207
Total non-current assets 85,622,207 85,622,207
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 14 8,047,218 284,919
Total current assets 8,047,218 284,919
Total assets 93,669,425 85,907,126
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 - (2,200)
Total current liabilities - {2,200}
Total liabilities - {2,200)
Net assets 93,669,425 85,904,926
Share capital 20 928,387 857,105
Share premium 92,143,681 85,047,821
Accumulated profit 597,357 -
Total shareholders’ funds 93,669,425 85,904,926

*Restated due to transition to IFRS — refer to note 26

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no Income Statement or Statement of
Comprehensive Income is presented for the Company. Result for the year was £597,357 (14 months
ended 31 December 2021: £nil).

This report and the financial statements on pages 12 to 56 were approved by the Board of Directors on
2 June 2023 and signed on behalf of the board by:

DocuSigned by:

iy Ponayl

2782C64065E142€E.

A Panayi
Director

Registered No. 12984994
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Project Vision Topco Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Share Share Accumulated Total
Canpital Premium Losses
Note £ £ £ £
At 29 October 2020 - - - -
Comprehensive loss:
Loss for the period - - (3,602,345) (3,602,345)
Currency translation differences - - (113,584) {113,584)
Total comprehensive loss - - (3,715,929) (3,715,929)
Shares issued 857,105 85,047,821 - 85,904,926
At 31 December 2021* 857,105 85,047,821 (3,715,929) 82,188,997
Comprehensive loss: '
Loss for the year - - (9,284,090} (9,284,090)
Currency translation differences - - 233,527 233,627
Totat comprehensive loss - - {9,050,563) (9,050,563)
Shares issued 20 71,282 7,095,860 - 7,167,142
Balance 31 December 2022 928,387 92,143,681 (12,766,492) 80,305,576
*Restated due to transition to IFRS — refer to note 26
Statement of Changes in Equity — Company
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Share Share Retained Total
Capital Premium Earnings
Note £ £ £ £
At 29 QOctober 2020 - - - -
Comprehensive loss:
Result for the period - - - -
Currency translation differences - - - -
Total comprehensive loss - - - -
Shares issued 857,105 85,047,821 - 85,804,926
At 31 December 2021 857,105 85,047,821 - 85,904,926
Comprehensive loss:
Result for the year - - 597,357 597,357
Currency translation differences - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - 597,357 597,357
Shares issued 20 71,282 7,095,860 - 7,167,142
Balance 31 December 2022 028,387 92,143,681 597,357 93,669,425

15



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5241D97B-F401-43D6-8702-40A856442F8E

Project Vision Topco Limited

Consolidated Statement Of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Restated”
Year Ended 14 months ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Necte £ £
Operating activities
Loss before tax (6,984,970) {2,031.603)
Adjustments te reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and 8,9 1,452,131 1,039,617
equipment and right-of-use assets
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets L 1,808,423 978,094
Loss on disposaf of property, plant and equipment 8 11,631 -
Finance income 6 {7,856) -
Finance expense 6 16,986,205 4,808,762
Working capital movements:
Increase in trade and other receivables (1,405,720} {3.686,859)
Increase in trade and cther payables 4,669,274 67,823
16,539,118 1,275,834
Tax paid - (2,290,352)
Net cash flows from operating activities 16,539,118 (1,014,518}
Investing activities
Expenditure on intangible assets 12 (1,082,969) {159,010,585)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 89 (1,164,585} (630,550)
Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings, net of cash 8 (19,229,941) (546,165)
acquired
Finance income received 6 7,856 -
Net cash flows used in investing activities {21,469,639) (160,187,300}
Financing activities
Issue of share capital 20 7,167,142 85,904,926
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities 1,085,067 800,010
Proceeds from loans and borrowings 16 12,847,881 83,271,704
Repayment of loans and borrowings 16 - (4,948,993)
Finance costs paid 6 {16,996,205) 114,268
Net cash flows used in financing activities 4,103,885 165,141,915
Net (decrease }/increase in cash and cash equivalents (826,636} 3,940,087
Net foreign exchange differences 6,547,568 -
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 3,940,097 -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 9,661,029 3,940,097

*Restated due to transition to IFRS — refer to note 26
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DocuSign Envelepe ID: 5241D97B-F401-43D6-8702-40A856442F8BE

Project Vision Topco Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

1. General Information

Project Vision Topco Limited ("the company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the group”) operate as a
biopharmaceutical consulting group specialising in product strategy and decision support from offices
based in UK, US, Germany, Spain, India and China.

The company is a private company limited by shares, registered and domiciled in England and Wales
and incarporated on 29 October 2020. On 19 January 2021, Bridgepoint Development Capital, through
a number of controlled funds, made a substantial investment in the company. As a result of this
investment, subsidiaries of Project Vision Topco Limited acquired the entire share capital of Vision
Topce Limited and its subsidiaries, which trade as Prescient Healthcare Group.

The principal activity of the company is as the holding company of the Prescient Healthcare Group.
There are currently no expectations that this will change in the foreseeable future.

2 Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been prepared in
accordance with UK adopted International Accounting Standards and with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies reporting under those standards.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, as modified by
the recognition of certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value. The accounting policies
have been applied consistently throughcut the period unless stated otherwise.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with UK Accounting
Standards including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland” (FRS 102) and under historical accounting rules.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consclidated financial statements, are disclosed below in note 2.2.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the entity
Going Concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The directors confirm that
having reviewed the group and company’s cash requirements for the next 12 months frem the date of
signing the financial statements, they have a reasonable expectation that the group and the company
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence and meet its liabilities as and when they
fall due for the foreseeable future. The directors have considered their current cash flow projections
within the group.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 5241D97B-F401-43D6-8702-40A856442F8E

Project Vision Topco Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.2 Significant judgements and estimates

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experiences and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

2,21 Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the use of estimates and assumptions to
determine the value of assets and labilities and contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date,
as well as revenue and expenses reported during the period.

Due to uncertainties inherent in the estimate process, the Group regularly revises its estimates in light
of currently available information. Final outcomes could differ from those estimates.

The key estimates used in preparing the Group’s consolidated financial statements relate mainly to:

« measurement of the project compietion and profitability levels for revenue recognition purposes;

« measurement of the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, cther intangible assets
and goodwill;

* measurement of provisions;

s measurement of recognised tax liabilities

Each of these categories of key estimates are described further below.
Revenue Recognition

The Group typically enters into “time and expense” and “fixed fee” contracts. For contracts which are
based on time and expense, gross revenue and profit is recognised based on hours and expenses
charged to date. For fixed fee contracts, gross revenue and profit it recognised on a percentage
completion basis when the cutcome of a contract or project can be reasonably foreseen. The
percentage of completion is established by reference to the value of services provided to date as a
proportion of the total expected consideration at completion. Contract expenses include direct staff
costs, sub-contractor costs and disbursements.

In making their estimate, the directors considered the detailed criteria for the recegnition of revenue set
out in [FRS 15 in conjunction with the Group policy, and are satisfied that the recognition of the revenue
in the current year is appropriate.

Recoverable amount of intangible assets, property plant and equipment and goodwill

The group recognises intangible assets acquired as part of business combinations at fair value at date
of acquisition. The determination of these fair values is based upon management's judgement and
includes assumptions on the timing and amount of future incremental cash flows generated by the
assets and selection of an appropriate cost of capital. Furthermore, management must estimate the
expected useful lives of intangible assets and charge amortisation on those assets accordingly.

The group recognises the development of software products as intangible assets. The determination of
the capitalisation of the development costs of the software products is based on management’s
judgement as to whether the criteria has been met. Furthermore, management must estimate the
expected useful economic lives of the software products.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 5241D37B-F401-43D6-8702-40A856442F8E

Project Vision Topco Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.2 Significant judgements and estimates {continued)

Tax liabilities

The group operates across multiple tax jurisdictions with tax legislation impacting the entities within the
group and directors and employees thereof. Certain judgements and estimates are made in respect of
tax, which the directors believe to be appropriate. Should a tax authority take a different view in respect
of judgements or estimates impacting uncertain tax positions, a tax liability could result. There are no
cn-going lax invesligalions across the group and the directors believe that the likelihcod of any such
liability impacting the group is remote and therefare no provisions have been recognised.

2.2.2 Judgements

As weli as relying on estimates, the Directors make judgements to define the appropriate accounting
policies and decisions to apply to certain activities and transactions, including when the effective IFRS
standards and interpretations do not specifically deal with the related accounting issues. The following
are the critical judgement, apart from those involving estimates, that the directors have made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Classification of unsecured investor loan notes

The unsecured investor loan notes are repayable on maturity date or on an exit event, whichever is
earlier. It is the directors judgement that the classification of the notes in the statement of financial
position should remain as non-current.

Significant accounting policies

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the results of Project Vision Topco Limited and its
subsidiary undertakings drawn up for the year ended to 31 December 2022.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group consolidates an entity when
it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Where the group owns less than 50% of the
voting powers of an entity but controls the entity by virtue of an agreement with other investors which
give it control of the financial and operating policies of the entity, it financial statements for that entity
as a subsidiary. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group {the acquisition date}.

inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are alsc eliminated. Where necessary amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting

policies.
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Project Vision Topco Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.3 Basis of consolidation (continued)

Disclosure exemptions

The Company has taken advantage of the following exemptions under IFRS and FRS 102:

s The requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures;

» The requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows;

» The requirements of paragraphs 10{d) and 10(f) of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and;

« The requirements of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures from disclosing related party transactions
with wholly owned subsidiaries within the Group.

No income statement is presented for the Company as permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act
2006.

Business Combinations and goodwill

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree, and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Where control is achieved in stages, the cost is the consideration at the
date of each fransaction.

Goodwill recognised represents the excess of the fair value and directly attributable costs of the
purchase consideration over the fair values to the Group's interest in the identifiable net assets, liabilities
and contingent liahilities acquired. The goodwill impairment review policy is outlined in 2.9.1.

Acquisition related costs of a business combination are expensed as incurred within transaction costs
in the income statement. Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in accordance with
IFRS 9 in the income statement.

Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

The fair value of acquired intangible assets (and therefore the resulting goedwill recognised on the
acquisition) is significantly affected by a number of factors. These include management's best estimates
of future performance (i.e. forecast revenue, expected revenue attrition and forecast operating margin)
and estimates of the return required to determine an appropriate discount rate (in order to calculate the
net present value of the assets).

Transaction costs

Transaction costs consist of costs related to acquisitions (including gains or losses arising from
remeasurement of contingent consideration), refinancing and other transaction related activities. These
costs do not reflect the underlying performance of the business. Transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement.
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Project Vision Topco Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.4 Current versus non-current

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-
current classification. An asset is current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period.
Or

- Cash ur cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting peried

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

- Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

- ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period
Or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue
of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

2.5 Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments such as derivatives and non-financial assets at fair value.
The Group uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise the use
of uncbservable inputs.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purpose in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the
scope of IFRS 16 Leases.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as follows:

- Level 1-— Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

The Group determines each year whether transfers have occurred between levels of the hierarchy.
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Project Vision Topco Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.6 Foreign currencies
Presentation and functional currency

ltems included in the consoclidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which each Group company operates (its functionaf currency). The financial
statements are presented in sterling, which is the Company's presentation and functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. At each period end foreign currency monetary items are translated
using the closing rate. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the fransaction and non-monetary items measured at fair value are
measured using the exchange rate when fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting frem the sefflement of transactions and from the
translation at pericd-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the Income Statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the Income Statement within “administrative expenses”. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the Income Statement within “administrative expenses”.

Translation of the results of overseas businesses

The trading results of group undertakings are translated into sterling at the average exchange rates for
the pericd. The assets and liabilities of overseas undertakings are translated at the exchange rates
ruling at the period-end. Exchange adjustments arising from the retranslation of opening net
investments and from the translation of the profits or losses at average rates are recognised in ‘other
comprehensive income’,
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 5241D97B-F401-43D6-8702-40A856442F8E

Project Vision Topco Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.7 Revenue

2,7.1 Revenue Recognition

The Group follows the principles of IFRS 15 in determining appropriate revenue recognition policies.
Revenue represents amounts chargeable for services provided to third parties in the normal course of
business.

Revenue from services is recognised following the principles outlined in IFRS 15's five step model as
detailed below:

* Identifying the contract: Upon acceptance of a proposal, a contract is entered into, to include details
on the scope of work and each party's rights and obligations regarding the transfer of the services
as well as payment terms for the service being transferred;

* ldentifying the performance obligations in the contract: Key deliverables are stated in the contact
and monitored on an on-going basis against the agreed delivery timetable. The contract states our
obligations to the client. In assessing performance cbligations, consideration is given as to whether
each identified key deliverable is a separate performance obligation, or a series of services that are
substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer to the customer so as to form cne
overall performance obligation;

» Determining the transaction price: Each centract has a section describing fees and will state the
invoicing profile (i.e. the value and frequency) of the invoices to be raised. The transaction price is
developed during the proposal process through establishing the scope of the work and the staffing
levels required to deliver that work. Upon acceptance the total fee value is stated in the contract
and is also breken down into an invoicing schedule;

* Allocating the transaction price to separate performance obligations: Contracts typically include only
one performance obligation and therefore the process of allocation the contract price is
straightforward. in instances where more than one performance obligation is identified in the contract
these contracts typically include separately agreed fees for each performance obligation. Allocation
of the transaction price is therefore straightforward.;

+ Recognising revenue as performance obligations are satisfied: Revenue is recognised over time as
work is performed. Performance of the service does not create an asset with an alternative use, and
we have enforceable right to payment for work performed to date.

2.7.2 Gross Revenue

Gross revenue represents amounts recoverable from clients in respect of the Group’s continuing
activities. Gross revenue includes costs incurred on behalf of clients and excludes sales taxes.

The Group typically enters into “time and expense” and “fixed fee” contracts. For contracts which are
based on time and expense, gross revenue and profit is recognised based on hours and expenses
charged to date. For fixed fee contracts, gross revenue and profit is recognised on a percentage
completion basis when the outcome of a contract or project can be reasonably foreseen. The
percentage of completion is established by reference to the value of services provided to date as a
proportion of the total expected consideration at completion. Contract expenses include direct staff
costs, sub-contractor costs and disbursements. The Directors consider that this input method is an
appropriate measure of the progress towards complete satisfaction of these performance obligations
under IFRS 15.

Attributable profit is recognised for that part of the work performed on each contract at the accounting
date when the cutcome can be assessed with reascnable certainty.
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Project Vision Topco Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.7.3 Net Revenue

Net revenue is gross revenue after deduction of external project costs, which are principally sub-
contractors on projects.

2.7.4 Contract losses

Contracts are reviewed regularly and full provision is made for any anticipated total loss on contracts in
the period in which they are first identified,

2.7.5 Amounts recoverable on contracts and bills in advance

The amount by which turnover exceeds invoiced amounts is disclosed as “accrued income’ within
debtors on the statement of financial position. Advance payments are included as "payments on
account” within creditors to the extent that they exceed the related work done.

2.7.6 Claims recognition

Due to the nature of the Groups operations, the Group is periodically exposed to contingent liabilities
arising from its contracting arrangements or actual or potential disputies, claims or litigation. The Group
has processes to identify contingent liabilities when they arise and where possible to quantify the
potential exposure. When it is judged probable that a liability will arise and that liability can be estimated,
a charge is made for the cost of settlement and included in accruals.

2.8 Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains a lease. That is, if the
current centract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recogniticn and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

2.8.1 Right of use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. If the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset or restore
the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is
recognised and measured under |AS 37.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term starting at the

commencement date of the lease. The right of use assets are presented as a separate line in the
consclidated financial position. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.
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Project Vision Topco Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.8.2 Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

+ fixed payments {including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable;
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,

amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group; and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
Lease liabilities are presented as a separate line in the consclidated statement of financial position.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabiiities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.

The carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the lease payments (e.g. changes to future payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to defermine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

The Group's lease liabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

2.9 Intangible assets
2.9.1 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
entity recognised at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses if any.

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation but is reviewed at least annually for indicators of impairment. For
the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(CGU's), expected to benefit from the business combination. Each unit or group of units to which
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is menitored for
internal management purposes.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amaunt of any goodwill allocated to the units, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the
other assets in the units on a pro rata basis. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed
in the subsequent period.
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Project Vision Topco Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.9.2 Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Internally generated intangible assets arising from development activities are recognised if
capitalisation criteria have been met as outlined below:

+ itis technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use;

management intends to complete the software and use or sell it;

there is an ability to use or sell the software;

it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits;
adeguate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the software are available;

s the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an assetin a
subseqguent period.

Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis to allocate the depreciable amount of the assets to their
residual values over their useful economic lives, as follows:

Brand 5 years
Software assets 3 years
Customer order books within 1 year
Customer relationships 5-18 years

Amortisation is included in the income statement. The amonrtisation of software products commences
once the software is able to be used in the business to generate economic benefit.

2.10 Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are recognised at cost and are subsequently carried at their
historical cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition and installation of the asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write down the cost or valuation less estimated residual as follows:
Land and Buildings 10 years straight line
Motor Vehicles 3 to & years on the written down value

Fixtures and fittings 3 to 5 years on the written down value
Computers and other equipment 3 to 5 years on the written down value
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2.11 Investments

Investments are initially recorded at cost, and subsequently stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses,

2.12 Impairment of property, plant and equipment, investments and intangibles
assets

In accordance with IAS 36, impairment tests are carried out where there is an indication that the assets
may be impaired. Such indications may be based on events or changes in the market environment, or
on internal sources of information, A review for indicators of impairment is carried out at each reperting
date, with the recoverable amount being estimated where such indicators exist. Where the carrying
value exceeds the recoverable amount, the asset is impaired accordingly.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, an estimate is made
of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset befongs. The cash-generating
unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets that includes the asset and generates cash inflows that
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets,

Any impairment loss is recorded in the consolidated income statement under “Impairment losses”.

Impairment losses recorded in relation to property, plant and equipment may be subsequently reversed
if the recoverable amount of the assets subsequently increases above carrying value. The increased
carrying amount of an item of property, plant or equipment attributable to a reversal of an impairment
loss may not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
depreciationfamortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised in prior periods. Impairment losses
in respect of intangible assets may not be reversed on a future change in circumstances that led to the
impairment.

2.13 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group’s Statement of Financial Position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

2.13.1 Financial Assets
Financial assets comprise loans and receivables carried at amortised cost, including trade and other

receivables, and financial assets measured at fair value through income. Financial assets are analysed
into current and non-current assets in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
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Loans and receivables carried at amortised cost

On initial recognition, trade and other receivables are recorded at fair value, which generally
corresponds to their nominal value. Impairment losses are recorded based on the estimated risk of non-
recovery. Trade receivables are stated net of provisions. Trade receivables are generally settled on a
short time frame and the Group's other financial assets are due from counterparties without material
credit risk. The Group has used the simplified approach as set out in IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
and consequently loss allowances are measured at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit
loss.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the entity has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership. If the entity neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards, but has
not retained control of the financial assets, it also derecognises the assets.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates
that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit arrangements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows

2.13.2 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payabies, derivative financial instruments and
other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities are broken down into current and non-current liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financia! position. Current financial liabilities primarily comprise:

+ financial liabilities with a settlement or maturity date within 12 months after the reporting date;

= financial liabilities in respect of which the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement beyond 12 months after the reporting date; and

+ derivative financial instruments qualifying as fair value hedges where the underlying is classified as
a current item.

Measurement of borrowings

Borrowings are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method with interest related
charges recognised as an expense in finance cost in the Statement of Comprehensive income. Cn
initial recognition, any issue or redemption premiums and discounts and issuing costs are added
to/deducted from the nominal value of the borrowings concemed. These items are taken into account
when caiculating the effective interest rate and are therefore recorded in the consalidated income
statement over the life of the borrowings using the amortised cost method.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires.
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2.14 Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand,
and short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible
to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts,
when applicable are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and shart-term deposits, as defined abuve, net of outstanding bank overdrafts, as they are considered
an integral part of the Group's cash management

2.15 Share Capital

Ordinary shares and priority shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of share capital or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
The share premium is the difference between the consideration paid when new share capital has
been issued and the nominal value of the shares.

2.16 Employee Benefits

The Group operates various post-employment schemes, including defined contribution pension plan
and other staff benefits.

Defined contribution pension plan

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity and has no legal or constructive cbligation to pay further amounts if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in current or prior
periods. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses in the consolidated income
statement in the periods during which services are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to a reduction in future payments or
a cash refund.

Short-term benefits

A liability is recognised for henefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual
leave or cash bonus if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee and obligation can be estimated reliably in the period
the related service is rendered.

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided.
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2.17 Financial income and expenses

Financial expenses comprise interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts, interest payable on
shareholder debt, amortisation of debt issue costs and changes in the fair value of financial liabilities
that are recognised in the income statement. Financial income comprises interest receivable an funds
invested and changes in the fair value of financial assets recognised in the income statement. Interest
income and interest payable is recognised in the income statement as it accrued by reference to the
principal outstanding at the effective interest rate. The cost of arranging bank borrewing is capitalised
and written off over the term of the loan.

Foreign currency gains and losses on revaluation of intercompany loans and bank loans are reported
on a net basis.

2.18 Taxation

The taxation expense represents the aggregate amount of current and deferred tax recognised in the
reporting period. Tax is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in capital and reserves. In this
case, tax is recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in capital and reserves, respectively.

Current tax is recognised on taxable profit for the current and past periods. Current tax is measured at
the amounts of tax expected to pay or recover using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences at the reporting date. Unrelieved tax losses
and other deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered
against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits. Deferred tax is measured
using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date that
are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are reccgnised when the entity has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past
event; it is probabile that the entity will be required to trangfer economic benefits in setttement and the
amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably. Provisions are recognised as a liability in the
statement of financial position and the amount of the provision as an expense.

Provisions are initially measured at the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at
the reporting date and subsequently reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate of the amount that would be required to settle the obligation. Any adjustments to the
amounts previously recognised are recognised in profit or loss unless the provision was originally
recognised as part of the cost of an asset. When a provision is measured at the present value of the
amount expected to be required to settle the obligation, the unwinding of the discount is recognised in
finance costs in profit or loss in the peried it arises.
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3. Revenue

The Group is exempt from detailed IFRS 8 reporting requirements as neither its debt nor equity
instruments are traded in a public market, nor dees it have the requirement to file its financial statements
with a securities commission or other regulatory crganisation for the purpose of issuing any class of

instruments in a public market.

A segmental analysis of revenue by geographic origin is provided as follows:

Gross revenue by origin Year Ended 14 months ended
31 December 31 December

2022 2021

£ £

USA 32,806,233 22,773,428
Rest of world 19,853,932 8,693,589
52,660,165 31,467,017

All of the Group’s revenue is derived from the provision of services, and all revenues recognised arose

from contracts with customers.

4. Staff costs, staff numbers and Directors’ remuneration

Staff costs

Staff costs of the Group (including Directors’ remuneration) were as follows:

Year Ended 14 months ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

£ £

Wages and salaries (1) 25,181,252 15,392,233
Social security costs 1,701,869 940,068
Caontributions to defined contributicn plans 1,046,272 710,128
Total staff costs 27,929,393 17,042,429

1 Wages and salaries include performance-related bonus amounts earned in respect of the year

under which they are shown (but not paid until the following year)

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes for staff. The contributions are payable to
external funds which are administered by independent trustees. Contributicns during the year amounted
to £1,046,272 (14 months to 31 December 2021: £710,128). The group, through its US subsidiary,
sponsors a savings plan defined under Section 401K of the Internal Revenue Code of the USA, covering

substantially all of its US based employees.

At the balance sheet date, an accrual of £81,825 relating to unpaid pension contributions is included

within the financial statements (2021: £44,465)
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4. Staff costs, staff numbers and Directors’ remuneration {(continued)
Staff numbers

The average number of full time employees (including executive Directors) in the Group during the year
was made up as follows:

Year Ended 14 months ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

Number Number

Consulting 367 308
Administrative 46 28
413 336

The Company had no employees during the year ended 31 December 2022 (14 months to 31 December
2021 nif)

Directors’ remuneration
The emoluments of all executive Directors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 were
paid by other Group companies and are as follows:

Year Ended 14 months ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

£ £

Emoluments 1,051,571 525,368
Contributions tc defined contribution plans 118,390 92,302
Total staff costs 1,170,961 617,670
No. of members of defined contribution pension schemes 5 3

Emoluments include performance-related bonus amounts earned in respect of the year under which
they are shown (but not paid until the following year). Emoluments are paid in local currency in the
country of residence.

The amounts in respect of the highest paid executive Director are as folliows:

Year Ended 14 months ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

£ £

Emoluments 310,888 246,007
Contributions to defined contribution plans 27,974 30,715
338,862 276,722
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5. Other operating expenses by nature, including transaction costs

Other operating expenses include:

Year Ended 14 months ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

£ £

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 427,458 240,058

Depreciation of right of-use assets 1,024,673 789,559

Amortisation of intangible assets 1,808,423 978,094

Loss on dispesal of property, plant and equipment 11,631 -

Transaction costs — acquisition related 1,009,835 -

Foreign exchange {gain)/loss on non-financial activities (1,099,364) 104,191
Auditors’ remuneration

- audit of Group financial statements 84,780 68,000

- audit of financial statements of subsidiaries pursuant 108,220 80,200

to legislation
- tax compliance and tax advisory services 65,520 67,750
- other advisory services 13,800 -
6. Financial income and expenses

Year Ended 14 months ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

£ £

Bank interest income 7,856 11,626

Total financial income 7,856 11,526

Third party loan interest (6,671,658) {4,362,283)

Interest expense lease liabilities {121,156) (114,268)

Interest accrued on loan notes (3,889,350} {3,178,302)

Loss on foreign exchange on revaluation of bank loans (6,314,041} (1,730,460}

Total financial expenses (16,996,205} (9,385,313)

Net financial expenses (16,988,349} (9,373,787)
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7. Taxation

Analysis of tax charge

The Group operates across many different tax jurisdictions. Income and profits are earned and taxed
in the individual countries in which they cccur. Differences between the UK statutory tax rate and the
effective tax rate for the Group include, but are not limited to, the mix of profits, the effect of tax rates in
overseas jurisdictions, non-deductible expenses, the effect of utilised tax losses, and under/over

pravisions in previous periods.

The major components of income tax expense in the consolidated income statement are:

Year Ended 14 months ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£ £
Current tax:
Charge for the period 2,362,480 1,594,308
Adjustments in respect of prior years {69,743) 78,550
Total current tax charge 2,292,737 1,672,858
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of tempaorary 6,383 (102,116)
differences
Total deferred tax credit 6,383 (102,116)
Total tax charge for the year 2,299,120 1,570,742
Reconciliation of tax charge
Year Ended 14 months ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£ £
Loss before taxation (6,984,970) {2,031,603)
Loss before taxation at UK statutory rate of (1,327,144) (386,005)
19% (2021: 19%)
Effects of:
Non-deductible expenses 3,098,474 1,280,850
Timing differences 80,902 165,431
Higher statutory tax rates on averseas 516,631 431,816
earnings
Adjustments in respect of previous periods (69,743) 78,550
Total tax charge for the year 2,299,120 1,570,742

In the Spring Budget 2021, the UK Government announced that from 1 April 2023 the corporation tax
rate would increase to 25% (rather than remaining at 18%, as previously enacted}. This new law was
substantively enacted on 24 May 2021. Deferred taxes at the halance sheet date have been measured
using these enacted tax rates and reflected in these financial statements.
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8. Property, plant and equipment

Group Land and Motor Fixtures  Computers Total
Buildings Vehicles and fittings and other
£ equipment

£ £ £ £
Cost:
At 29 October 2020 - - - - -
Acquisition - - 211,768 346,582 558,350
Additions - - 131,164 415,002 546,166
Foreign exchange difference - - {715) 17 {698)
At 31 December 2021 - - 342,217 761,601 1,103,818
At 1 January 2022 - - 342,217 761,601 1,103,818
Acquisition {(note 12} 44 324 49 980 39,935 132,007 266,246
Additions - - 80,607 220,338 300,945
Disposals - - - (45,725} {45,725)
Foreign exchange difference - - 23,361 42,617 65,978
At 31 December 2022 44,324 49,980 486,120 1,110,838 1,691,262
Accumulated depreciation
At 29 Qctober 2020 - - - - -
Charge for the period - - 55,824 184,234 240,058
Foreign exchange differences - - - - -
At 31 December 2021 - - 55,824 184,234 240,058
At 1 January 2022 - - 55,824 184,234 240,058
Charge for the year 4,978 10,621 124,646 287,213 427,458
Disposals - - - (34,094) (34,094)
Foreign exchange differences - - 14,701 22,994 37,695
At 31 December 2022 4,978 10,621 195,171 460,347 671,117
Carrying amounts:
Net book value at 31 - - 286,393 577,367 863,760
December 2021
Net book value at 31 39,3486 39,359 290,949 650,491 1,020,145
December 2022
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9. Right-of-use assets

The Group leases a number of ieasehold properties.

Leasehold Computers Motor Total
Group Property and other Vehicles
equipment
£ £
Cost:
At 28 October 2020 - - - -
Additions 3,174,678 9,666 19,510 3,203,854
At 31 December 2021 3,174,678 9,666 19,510 3,203,854
At 1 January 2022 3,174,678 9,666 19,510 3,203,854
Additions 863,640 - - 863,640
At 31 December 2022 4,038,318 9,666 19,510 4,067,494
Accumulated amortisation
At 29 October 2020 - - - -
Charge for the period {(788,318) {1,879) (8,362) {799,559)
At 31 December 2021 (789,318} {1,879) (8,362) (799,559}
At 1 January 2022 {(789,318) {1,879) (8,362) (799,559)
Charge for the year (1,013,088} (3,222) (8,362) (1,024,673)
At 31 December 2022 (1,802,407) (5,101) (16,724) (1,824,232)
Carrying amounts:
Net book value at 31 December 2021 2,385,360 7,787 11,148 2,404,295
Net book value at 31 December 2022 2,235,911 4,565 2,786 2,243,262
10. Investments
Company Total
£
Cost:
At 29 October 2020 -
Additions 85,622,207
At 31 December 2021 85,622,207
At 1 January 2022 85,622,207
Additions -
At 31 December 2022 85,622,207
Carrying amounts:
Net book value at 31 December 2021 85,622,207
Net book value at 31 December 2022 85,622,207

See note 22 for details of related undertakings
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11. Intangible assets

Group

Goodwill

£

Customer
Relationships
£

Brand

£

Software

£

Total

£

Cost:

At 29 October
2020

Acquisition

160,592,125

3,111,000

1,576,210

165,278,335

Additions

630,550

630,550

At 31 December
2021

160,692,125

3,111,000

2,206,760

165,909,885

Accumulated
amortisation

At 29 October
2020

Charge for the
period

(298,138)

(679,956)

(978,004)

At 31 December
2021

(298,138)

(679,956)

(978,094)

Carrying
amounts:

Net book value at
31 December
2021

160,592,125

2,812,862

1,526,804

164,931,791

Cost:

At 1 January 2022
Acquisition (note
12)

Additions

160,592,125
8,160,496

11,400,000

3,111,000
183,000

2,206,760

1,082,969

165,809,885
19,743,496

1,082,969

At 31 December
2022

168,752,621

11,400,000

3,294,000

3,289,729

186,736,350

Accumulated
amortisation

At 1 January 2022
Charge for the year

(527.778)

(298,138)
(341,600)

(679,956)
(939,045)

(978,094)
{1,808,423)

At 31 December
2022

(527,778)

(639,738}

(1,619,001)

(2,786,517)

Carrying
amounts:

Net book value at
31 December 2021

160,582,125

2,812,862

1,526,804

164,831,791

Net book value at
31 December
2022

168,752,621

10,872,222

2,654,262

1,670,728

183,949,833
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11. Intangible assets (continued)

Impairment and fair value adjustments

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to CGU's or
group of CGU’s and is not amortised but tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. A CGU is identified
as the lowest aggregation of assets that generates largely independent cash inflows at which goodwill
and intangible assets are monitored within the Group

Management has reviewed the goodwill using the Group’s value-in-use model. The key assumptions
used by managemant in these calculations are cash flow projections and long-term growth rates.

The cash flow projections use an initial two year period derived from the Group’s most recent business
plan. The cash flows reflect management's expectations of future outcomes, based on past and current
experience and expectations of the medium to long term growth prospects for the sector, after
considering economic and business risks facing the Group. Management consider the trading profit
assumptions as a product of net revenue and projected costs, to be the key operating assumptions.
Cther key assumptions include the long-term growth rate applied to extrapolate the cash flows.

The level at which impairment is tested reflects the lowest level at which geodwill and intangible assets
are monitored for internal reporting purposes. For the purpose of impairment testing goodwill is
allocated to a single CGU. The carrying amount of geodwill is set out below:

Year ended
31 December
2022

£

Total Value 8,160,496

No impairment of goodwill has been recognised in the year to 31 December 2022 as value-in-use
exceeds its carrying value.
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12. Business comhinations

Strategic North acquisition

On 28 February 2022, the group acquired the entire share capital of Strategic North Limited, a pharma
services company specialising in research and brand strategy based in Manchester. The acquisition
and the combined expertise of both firms strengthens the Group’s ability to support our clients through
enhanced capability and capacity in its research and brand strategy services offering.

The acquisition was settled in cash of £11,684,874 and through the issue of loan notes and newly
issued priority shares totalling £9,973,221. The purchase agreement included additional deferred
consideration of £548,014 relating to optich and bonus related tax relief payments.

The purchase price allocation (PPA) has been prepared on a provisional basis in accordance with IFRS
3. During the measurement period the group finalised the valuation of the intangible assets recognised
on acquisition, the valuation of right-of-use property assets and the measurement of deferred tax

liabilities assumed on acquisition.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The following table summarises the recognised fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and

liabilities assumed at the acquisition date:

Book value of  Adjustments Fair value of
net assets 4 net assets
acquired acquired
£ £ £
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 6,491 11,576,509 11,583,000
Property, plant and equipment 266,246 - 266,246
272,737 11,576,509 11,849,246
Current assets
Trade receivables and other receivables 4,270,797 - 4,270,797
Cash 2,428,059 - 2,428,059
6,698,856 - 6,698,856
Current liabilities
Trade payables and other liabilities (3,084,243} - (3,084,243)
(3,084,243) - {3,084,243)
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax 234,415 (2,200,770) {1,966,355)
Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired 13,497,504
The identifiable intangible assets are as follows:
Customer relationships - 11,400,000 11,400,000
Strategic North brand - 183,000 183,000
Website development costs 6,481 (6,491) -
6,491 11,576,509 11,583,000

W Adjustments above comprise: (i) identifiable intangible assets acquired and associated deferred tax
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12. Business combinations (continued)

Strategic North acquisition (continued)

Adjustments made to the fair value of identifiable intangibles assets relate to the value of customer
relationships and the Strategic North brand name in accordance with IFRS 3 "Business combinations”.
The fair value adjustment is expected to amortise over the following periods:

Customer relaticnships -18 years
Strategic North brand name — 5 years

The valuation methodologies used to determine fair value are as follows:

Customer relationships: The income approach - muiti-period excess eamnings method (MEEM).

Trade Names: The income approach - relief from royalty method.

Lease liabilities and right-of-use assets: The Group measured the acquired lease liabilities using the
present value of the remaining lease payments as if the leases were new leases at the date of
acquisition. The corresponding right-of-use assets were measured at an amount equal to the lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the leases when compared with market
terms.

Deferred tax liability - mainly comprises the tax effect of the intangible assets.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from the acquisition has been recognised as follows:

£
Purchase consideration 21,658,000
Less; Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired (13,497,504)
Goodwill 8,160,496

The goodwill is principally attributable to the skills and technical talent of the acquired workforce and
the synergies expected to be achieved from integrating the company intc the Group.

Revenue and profit before tax

From the date of acquisition, Strategic North has contributed £11,724,675 of net revenue and
£2,857,495 operating profit (excluding cost of acquisition). If the acquisition had been completed on the
first day of the financial year, the Group's net revenue for the year would insteag have increased by
£13,782,326 and operating profit would have increased by £3,173,176. The results of Strategic North
post-acquisition benefitted from revenue synergies and client introductions arising from the business
combination.

Acquisition costs

Total acquisition-related costs of £1,008,835 were recognised within Other operating income and costs,
within exceptional iters and remeasurements in the consolidated income statement in the year.
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13. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The deferred tax recognised is comprised of the following:

Group Year Ended 14 months ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£ £

Difference type:
Accelerated capital allowances 84,405 23,478
Acquired intangible assets 3,070,537 972 883
- 3,154,942 996,361
Deferred tax asset - -
Deferred tax liabilities 3,154,942 996,361
Deferred tax net 3,154,942 996,361

Deferred taxation provided for in the financial statements is set out above and was calculated using
tax rates of 25%. The directors believe that the timing differences giving rise to the deferred tax assets
above will reverse in future years. £4,500 of the timing differences are expected to reverse in the next
period.

The Group's net deferred tax liability has increased from £9896,361 as at 31 December 2021 to
£3,154,942 as at 31 December 2022. The main reason for the movement is as a result of deferred tax
arising from the recognition of intangible assets as part of the acquisition of Strategic North Limited
(refer to note 12).

14. Trade and other receivables

Group Company Group Company

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2022 2022 2021 2021

£ £ £ £

Trade receivables 11,099,955 - 7,232,462 -

Amounts due from group - 8,002,292 - 284,919
undertakings

Other debtors 480,584 44,926 413,351 -

Prepayments and accrued 1,697,982 - 1,235,084 -

income
13,178,521 8,047,218 8,880,897 284,919

The average credit period taken on trade receivables, calcuiated by reference to the net amount owed
at the year-end as a proportion of total revenue in the year was 76.9 days (2021: 83.9 days)

The Group receives payments from customers based on a billing schedule, as established in the
contract. Trade receivables and amounts recoverable on contracts are recognised when the right to
consideration becomes unconditional.

The amounts due from group undertakings in the Company of £8,002,292 (2021: £278,595) are
unsecured and repayable on demand with interest charged on the outstanding balance.

Trade receivables are stated after provision for impairment of £143,027 (2021: £98,025}
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15. Trade and other payables

Group Company Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2022 2021 2021
£ £ £ £
Trade payables 1,250,191 - 667,395 -
Corporation tax 327,018 - 435,447 -
Other taxation and social security 1,072,196 - 352,722 -
Other creditors 634,638 - - -
Accruals and deferred income 14,446,302 - 6,579,642 2,200
17,730,345 - 8,035,206 2,200
The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables is approximate to their fair value.
16. Borrowings
Group Company Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2022 2021 2021
£ £ £ £
Non-Current liabilities:
Bank loans and overdrafts 70,044,501 - 53,730,460 -
Loan notes 36,279,585 - 33,431,704 -
Total Borrowings 106,324,086 - 87,162,164 -

Information about the Group's exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity risks is included

in note 23.

The iotal borrowings fall due as follows:

Group Company Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2022 2021 2021
£ £ £ £

Amounts falling due:
Within one year - - - -
In one to two years - - - -
In two to five years 106,324,086 - 33,431,704 -
Over five years - - 53,730,460 -
Total Borrowings 106,324,086 - 87,162,164 -
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16. Borrowings (continued)

The terms and conditions of outstanding loans as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 are

set out below:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
In£ Currency Nominat  Year of Face value Carrying  Face value Carrying
interest  maturity amourt amount
rale
Bank loan usb LIBOR 2028 70,044,501 70,044,501 53,730,460 53,730,460
+6.75%
Total Secured hank loans 70,044,501 70,044,501 53,730,460 53,730,460
Unsecured usp 10.00% 2030 36,279,585 36,279,585 33,431,704 33,431,704
investor loan
notes
Total Borrowings 106,324,086 106,324,086 87,162,164 87,162,164
Bank loans

The bank loan is denominated in US Dollars and has a term of 7 years at a rate of LIBOR plus 6.75%
repayable in full at the end of the term of the loan. The bank loan is secured by a charge over the assets

of the company and its subsidiaries.
Unsecured investor loan notes

On 28 February 2022, a further 2,847,881 loan notes were issued (2021: 33,431,704). Interest
accrues on the principal and payment in kind notes issued at a rate of 10.00% per annum. The

unsecured loan notes are listed on The International Stock Exchange, Guernsey. The loan notes are

repayable on an exit event.

The investor foan notes principal held as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

£ £

36,279,585 33,431,704

Total issued 36,279,585 33,431,704

The unsecured investor loan notes balance as at 31 Decernber 2022 for £36,279,585 excludes

£7,067,651 of accrued interest (31 December 2021: £33,431,704 excludes £3,178,302 of accrued
interest. The Investor Loan Notes are subordinated tc the bank lcans and other external creditors.
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17. Net Debt

Analysis of Net Debt

At 31 Cash flows Currency Other non- Additions At 31

December translation cash flow December

2021 adjustments 2022

£ £ £ £ £ £

Cash at bank and on 3,940,097 3,292,873 - - 2,428,059 9,661,029
hand

Cash and cash 3,940,097 3,292,873 - - 2,428,059 9,661,029

equivalents

Debt due within one - - - - - -
year

Debt due after one (87,162,164) (12,847,881)  (6,314,041) - - (106,324,086)
year

Lease liabilities ) {2,518.112) 1,187,401 (102,334)  (121,156) (863,640) {2,417.841)

{85,740,179) {8,367,607) (6,416,375) (121,156) {(1,564,419) {99,080,898)

" Other non-cash flow principally relates to non-cash movements in lease liabilities (principally interest)
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

Year Ended 14 months

31 December ended

2022 31 December

2021

£ £

Increase in cash 5,720,932 3,940,097

Issue of loan notes (2,847,881) (33,431,704)

Proceeds from new loans {10.000,000) (53,730,460)

Repayment of lease liabilities and interest 1,187,401 800,010

Change in net debt resulting from cash flows {5,939,548) {82,422,057)

Exchange difference (6,416,375) -

Interest accrued on leases {121,156} {114,268}

Lease additions, acquisitions and disposals {863,640} (3,203,854)

Other non-cash flow movement (7,401,171) {(3,318,122)

Movement in net debt in the financial year
Net debt as at 1 January

(13,340,719)
(85,740,179)

(85,740,179)

Net debt as at 31 December

(99,080,898)

{85,740,179)
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18. Lease liabilities

The Group leases offices. The leases typically run for a period of one to ten years, often with an option
to renew the lease after its expiry date. Each lease is reflected in the consalidated statement of financial

position as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability.

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
¥ £
Lease liability due:
Within one year 850,213 751,108
In two to five years 1,567,628 1,531,697
Qver five years - 235,307
Total lease liabilities 2,417,841 2,518,112
Disclosed as:
Current 850,213 751,108
Non-current 1,567,628 1,767,004
Total lease liabilities 2,417,841 2,518,112

19. Provisions

Group 31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£ £
Non-current:
Acquired intangibles 3,070,537 972,883
Accelerated capital allowances 84,405 23,478
Total deferred taxation 3,154,942 996,361
Dilapidations 120,000 120,000
Total 3,274,942 1,116,361
Group Acquired Accelerated Total Dilapidations Total
Intangibles capital deferred
allowances tax
£ £ £ E £
At 29 October 2020 - -
Acquisition 1,076,000 22,477 1,098,477 120,000 1,218,477
Additions - 1,001 1,001 - 1,001
Unused provision releases to (103,117) - (103,117) - (103.117)
income statement
At 31 December 2021 972,883 23,478 996,361 120,000 1,116,361
Acquisition 2,200,770 - 2,200,770 - 2,200,770
Additions - 60,927 60,927 - 60,927
Unused provision releases to {103,116} - {103,116} - (103,1186)
income statement
At 31 December 2022 3,070,537 84,405 3,154,942 120,000 3,274,942

As part of the group’s property leasing arrangements there is an obligation to repair damages which incur during the life of
the lease, such as wear and tear. The cost is charged to profit and loss as the obligation arises. The provision is expected to
be utilised between 2024 and 2027 as the leases finish.
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20. Share capital

Group and company Number £
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares 1,943,959 19,440
Issued and fully paid priority shares 83,766,525 837,665
At 31 December 2021 85,710,524 857,105
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares 2,096,575 20,966
Issued and fuily paid priority shares 90,742,085 907,421
At 31 December 2022 92,838,660 928,387

On 28 February 2022, 6,975,560 priority shares were issued. The priority shares were issued at £0.01
par vafue with a share premium of £6,905,804 for a total subscription sum of £6,975,560. A further
119,825 ordinary shares were also issued on the same date at £0.01 par value with a share premium
of £148,583 for a total subscription of £149,781

On 30 June 2022, 32,750 ordinary shares were issued. The ordinary shares were issued at £0.07 par
value with a share premium of £40,610 for a total subscription sum of £40,938.

On 18 July 2022, 5,750 ordinary shares were issued. The ordinary shares were issued at £0.01 par
value with a share premium of £7,130 for a total subscription of £7,188

The figures for the year to 31 December 2022 include an adjustment for the prior year relating to 5,750
unpaid shares at £0.01 par value with a share premium of £6,267 and a total subscription of £6,324.

The ordinary shares are entitled to a vote, dividend and distribution on a winding up.

21. Contingent liabilities

Due to the nature of the Group's operations, the Group is pericdically exposed to contingent liabilities
arising from its contracting arrangements or actual or potential disputes, claims or litigation. The Group
has processes to identify contingent liabilities when they arise and where possible to quantify the
potential exposure. Following 1AS 37, when it is judged probable that a liability will arise and that liability
can be estimated, a charge is made for the cost of settlement and included in accruals. For other cases
it is not possible to predict with certainty the results of these contingent liabilities but the Directors
believe, taking into account counter-claims including any claims against third parties, insurance
coverage and provisions in the financial statements, that the outcome will not have a material effect on
the Group's financial position,

22. Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have
been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Transactions between the Group
and its associates are disclosed below.

Unsecured investor loan notes

Project Vision Midco 1 Limited, the direct subsidiary of the Company, has unsecured investor loan notes
with Bridgepcint Group Pl¢. See note 16.

The unsecured investor loan notes balance as at 31 December 2022 is £36,279,585 on which

£7,067,651 of interest is accrued (31 December 2021: £33,431,704 with £3,178,302 of accrued
interest). The Investor Loan Notes are subordinated to the bank loans and other external creditors
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22. Related party transactions (continued)
Transactions with the management personnel

The Company Directors are considered to be the key management personnel. Directors’ remuneration
is disclosed in note 4.

Other related party balances

During the period the company was charged a £100,000 (31 December 2021: £100,000} monitoring fee
by Bridgepoint Group plc, the ultimate controlling party. At the period-end £nil was outstanding and
including in creditors.

The Group's main subsidiaries are listed in note 24.

23. Financial instruments and related disclosures

Financial Risk Management

The Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework. The Board of Directors usually meets monthly, with extra meetings as
required. At these meetings operational performance as well as business risks are monitored and
discussed with any necessary actions agreed to mitigate key risks.

Details of the Group's principal risks and uncertainties are set out in the Strategic Report on page 3.
Furthermore details of cash on hand and debt facilities are set out in Note 17.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's receivables from and
work in progress with customers.

The carrying amount of the Group's non-derivative financial assets represents the maximum credit
exposure. The maximum credit exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Notes 31 December 31 December

2022 2021

£ £

Trade receivables, net 11,099,955 7,232,462
Amounts recoverable on contracts - -
Other receivables 480,584 413,351
Cash and cash equivalents 9,661,029 3,940,097

21,241,568 11,585,910

The Group had nec significant concentrations of credit risk at the balance sheet date. The trade
receivables balance is spread across a large number of different customers in the pharmaceutical
sector. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history. The Group monitors the creditworthiness of counterparties using publicly available
information. As a result the Group's exposure to bad debts is net significant and default rates have
historically been very low.
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23. Financial instruments and related disclosures {continued)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in the market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest
rates, will affect the Group's income. Other risks include recession impacting gecgraphies or sectors
the Group operates in.

These risks are managed by strong reporting and contrals. Management monitors econcmic trends and
the impact on business performance and if necessary takes appropriate action to mitigate risks.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Greoup ensures that it has sufficient cash or loan facilities to meet all its commitments when they
fall due.

The risk is measured by review of forecast liquidity each month to determine whether there are sufficient
credit facilities to meet forecast requirements and by monitoring any obligations, limits and covenants
on a regular basis to ensure there are no significant breaches, which would lead to an “Event of default”.
The only covenant relates to the use of revolving credit facility at each quarter end. The Group has been
below the threshold for testing this covenant at every gquarter end. There are no other covenants that
apply to the group.

The Group is exposed to certain restrictions imposed by the terms of its debt facilities and the loans are
secured.

Note 31 December

31 December

2022 2021
£ £
Non-derivative financial liabilities — current:
Trade payables 1,250,191 667,395
Accrued expenses and other payables 14,446,302 6,579,642
Secured bank lcans - -
Non-derivative financial liabilities — non-current:
Other payables - -
Secured bank lcans 70,044 501 53,730,460
Unsecured investor loan notes 36,279,585 33,431,704
Total non-derivative financial liabilities 122,020,579 94,409,201

48



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 5241D97B-F401-43D6-8702-40A856442F8E

Project Vision Topco Limited

23, Financial instruments and related disclosures {(continued)

Liquidity Risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the contractual undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabiiities is set out below. The Group did not have any financial instruments designated as hedging
instruments as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: none)

31 December 2021 Carrying 12 months 1-2 2-5years  More than
amount or less years 5 years
- £ £ £ £ £
Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Trade payables 667,395 667,395 - - -
Accrued expenses and other 6,579,642 6,579,642 - - -

payables
Secured bank loans 53,730,460 - - - 53,730,460
Other payables - - - - -
Unsecured investor loan notes 33,431,704 - - 33,431,704 -
Total non-derivative financial 94,409,201 7,247,037 - 33,431,704 53,730,460

_liabilities
31 December 2022 Carrying 12 months 1-2 2-5years  More than
amount or less years 5 years
£ £ £ £ £

Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Trade payables 1,250,191 1,250,191 - - -
Accrued expenses and other 14,446,302 14,446,302 - - -

payables
Secured bank loans 70,044,501 - - - 70,044,501
Other payables - - - - -
Unsecured investor loan notes 36,279,585 - - 36,279,585 -
Totaf non-derivative financial 122,020,579 15,696,493 - 36,279,585 70,044,501

liabilities

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to the risk of interest rate fluctuations mainly with regard to the interest expense
oh external debt. The Group’s bank borrowings incur variable interest rate charges at LIBOR plus a

fixed margin.

The Group assesses whether interest rate hedges should be entered into on a regular basis. The Group
has entered into an arrangement for an interest rate cap to hedge against the increase of interest rates
on the bank loans. The interest rate cap has not been designated as a hedging instrument.

At the year end the Group has USD denominated interest rate caps in place, maturing on 31 March
2024, The caps minimise sensitivity to rises in USD LIBOR above 2.00% without impacting existing
participation in falling rates. The Groups indebtedness is drawn in US dollars to provide a natural hedge

against the major currency in which the Group operates.
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23. Financial instruments and related disclosures (continued)
Interest rate risk {continued)

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group's interest bearing financial instruments was

as follows:
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£ £
Face Value:
Fixed rate instruments:
Unsecured investor loan notes 36,279,685 33,431,704
Variable rate instruments:
Cash and cash equivalents 9,661,029 3,940,097

Based on the current operating profits the Group’s interest coverage is 1.45 thereby providing sufficient
headroom to enable the Group to pay its interest expenses on outstanding debt. The ratio is calculated
by dividing the Group’s operating profit before amortisation, net of financial expenses and income taxes
by the Group’s bank interest expense for the year.

Cash is used to fund the Group's continued investment and growth of the global brand. It is also used
to make routine payments of capital expenditure and tax.

The Group is in compliance with the limited financial and other obligations, limits and covenants within
its committed bank credit facilities, and has been in compliance throughout the historical period.

Fair value disclosures

The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair values. The majeority of the
financial assets are current. The majority of the current interest-bearing liabilities are at variable interest
rate. The fair values of the non-current fixed rate interest-bearing liabilities are not materially different
from their carrying amounts.

The Group did not have any financial instruments designated as hedging instruments at 31 December
2022 (31 December 2021: none).
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24. Investment in subsidiaries

Details of the related undertakings which the Group and the Company hold, directly or indirectly are
shown below. All companies either carry out the principal activities of the Group, namely the provision
of consulting services, or are holding companies. The address key refers to the registered office
address which is provided in the subsequent table.

Name of Company Company Country of Holding Holding Address
Number incorporation shares % Key
Project Vision Midco 1 Limited 12985016 England & Wales  Ordinary 100 1

The company has investments in the following indirect subsidiary undertakings:

Name of Company Company Country of Holding Holding Address
Number incorporation shares % Key
Project Vision Midco 2 Limited 12985024 England & Wales  Ordinary 100% 1
Project Vision Hedgeco Limited 13262552 England & Wales  Ordinary 100% 1
Project Vision Bidco Limited 12987820 England & Wales  Ordinary 100% 1
Strategic North Limited 07034623 England & Wales  Ordinary 100% 5
Vision Topco Limited 10825376 England & Wales  Ordinary 100% 1
Vision Midco Limited 10839626 England & Wales  Ordinary  100% 1
Vision Bidco Limited © 10825777 England &Wales  Ordinary  100% 1
Grindco 614 Limited 09182231 England & Wales  Ordinary 100% 1
Prescient Healthcare Group (UK) 02619610 England & Wales  Crdinary 100% 1
Limited
Prescient Healthcare Group Limited 02539256  England & Wales  Ordinary 100% 1
PHG Inc New Jersey, USA  Ordinary 100% 2
Prescient Healthcare Group 09182275 England & Wales  Crdinary 100% 1
_{Holdings) Limited
Prescient Healthcare Group Germany Ordinary  100% 3
Deutschland GmbH
Caonsult GB Limited {*} 02098164 England & Wales  Ordinary 100% 1
Prescient Market Research Limited 08183488 England & Wales  Ordinary 100% 1
Prescient Life Sciences Pte Limited India Ordinary 100% 4
Prescient Market Access Limited (*) 08148592 England & Wales  Ordinary 100% 1
Prescient Biopharma Limited (*) 08148602 England & Wales  Ordinary 100% 1
Prescient Life Sciences Limited 06936613 England & Wales  Ordinary 100% i

(%) Dormant entity

The Directors believe that the carrying value of the investments is supported by their underlying cash
flows.

The registered office addresses for the subsidiaries are set out below, with reference te the “address
key” in the preceding tables:

Address Address

key

1 CP House, C/O Prescient Healthcare Group, 97-107 Uxbridge Road, London, United Kingdom,
W5 5TL

2 15 Exchange Place, Suite 730, Jersey City, NJO7302, USA

3 Kurt-Blaum-Platz 8, 63450 Hanau, Germany

4 105-106 MG Road, Time Tower, Gurugram, Haryana, India

5 2m Floor, Westgate House, 44 Hale Road, Hale, Altrincham, WA4 2EX, UK
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24, Investment in subsidiaries {continued)

Six UK subsidiary entities of Project Vision Topco Limited — Vision Topco Limited, Vision Midco Limited,
Vision Bidco Limited, Grindco 614 Limited, Prescient Healthcare Group (Holdings) Limited and Prescient
Healthcare Group (UK) Limited - are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act relating to the
audit of individual financial statements by virtue of s479A, whereby Project Vision Topco Limited has
provided an audit exemption to these entities by way of providing a parent company guarantee.

25. Ultimate parent company

The Group parent undertaking is Project Vision Topco Limited, a limited company registered in England
and Wales. Copies of the financial statements of Project Vision Topco Limited, the smallest and largest
group for which financial statements are prepared that include the results of the Company, may be
obtained from the registered office of this company.

As at the Balance Sheet date Project Vision Topco Limited is controlled by BDC I 'A’ LP, BDC Il 'B’
LP, BDC Ill ‘'C’ LP, BDC Ill 'D' LP, BDC 1l ‘E’ LP, Percipience Co-Investment LP, Wigmore Street LP,
Warwick Street Investments Il LP & BDC lil Co-Investment LP via owning 46.40% of the issued share
capital. These funds were ultimately controlled by Bridgepoint Group plc, registered in the England &
Wales.

26. Explanation of transition to International Financial Reporting Standards

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 December 2022, are the first the Group has prepared
in accordance with IFRS. For the prior period, the Groups’ first period of account, ending 31 December
2021, the Group prepared its financial statements in accordance with local generally accepted
accounting procedures (FRS 102).

Impact of IFRS on Comparative Financial information

Accordingly, the Group has prepared financial statements that complty with IFRS applicable as at 31
December 2022, together with the comparative data for the period ended 31 December 2021, as
described in the summary of significant accounting policies.

As Project Vision Topco Limited publishes comparative information for one prior period in its Financial
Statements, the date for transition to IFRS is 29* October 2020; the start of the earliest period of
comparative information. The financia! information set out on pages 52 to 56 has been prepared in
crder to explain the adjustments made for the period ended 31 December 2021 and 2022 for the Group.
Ne¢ Statement of Financial Position at 29 Qctober 2020 has been presented separately alongside those
as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022 on the basis that this balance sheet consisted solely
of share capital.
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26. Explanation of transition to International Financial Reporting Standards
{continued)

Estimates

The estimates at 29 October 2020 and at 31 December 2021 are consistent with those made for the
same dates in accordance with FRS 102 (after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting
policies) apart from the following items where application of FRS 102 did not require estimation:

- Pensions and other postemployment benefits
- Share-based payment transactions; and
- Investments in equity instruments - unquoted equity shares

The estimates used by the Group to present these amounts in accordance with IFRS refiect
conditions at 29 October 2020, the date of transition to IFRS and as at 31 December 2021

Transition arrangements

The rules for first time adoption of IFRS are set out in IFRS 1 "First-time adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards”. IFRS 1 states that companies should use the same accounting palicies
in their opening IFRS balance sheet and for all pericds presented thereafter. The standard requires
these policies to comply with IFRSs effective at the reporting date for the first published financial
statements under IFRS (31 December 2022).

IFRS 3 Business Combinations

Under FRS 102, Project Vision Topco Limited amortised goodwill associated with business
combinations over its useful econemic life, which was deemed to be 10 years.

Under IFRS 3, all business combinaticns are accounted for by applying the purchase method. Any
goodwill acquired in a business combination is recognised as an asset and is not amortised. Instead,
goodwill is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired. Charges in respect of goodwill amortisation for 2021 were reversed
and the impact on operating profit was an increase of £15,390,079. There is no associated tax impact.

IFRS 1 requires an impairment review to be performed as of the transition date. As the transition date
marks the first period of account no impairment review was undertaken as at transition date. An
impairment review was performed on the goodwill for 31 December 2021 reporting purposes.

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

Trade and other receivables: The adoption of IFRS has fundamentally changed the Group's
accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by replacing incurred loss approach under FRS
102 with a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach. IFRS requires the Group to recognise
an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss and contract
assets. At the date of transition to IFRS, the Group reccgnised additional impairment on its Trade
receivables of £143,027 (31 December 2021: £98,025), which resulted in a decrease in retained
earnings by the same amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

26. Explanation of transition to International Financial Reporting Standards
{continued)

IFRS 16 - Leases

Under Local GAAP, a lease is classified as a finance lease or an operating lease. Operating lease
payments are recognised as an operating expense in the Income Statement on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Under IFRS, a lessee applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets and recognises lease liabilities
to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. At
the date of transition to IFRS, the Group applied the transitional provision and measured lease liabilties
at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of transition to IFRS.

Right-of-use assets were measured at the amount equal to the lease liabilities adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments. As a result, the Group recognised an increase of £2,520,176
(31 December 2021: £2,518,112) to lease labilities inciuded under interest-bearing loans and
borrowings and £2,243,262 (31 December 2021: £2,404,295} of right-of-use assets. The difference
between lease liabilities and right-of-use assets has been recognised in retained earnings.

In accordance with Local GAAP, Cash flows arising from operating lease payments are classified as
operating activities. Under IFRS, a lessee generally applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases and recognises lease liabilities. Cash flows arising from payments of principal
portion of lease liabilities are classified as financing activities. Therefore, cash outflows from operating
activities decreased by £800,010 and cash cutflows from financing activities increased by the same
amount for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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